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CENTRAL VIRGINIA WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 

     ADDENDUM 

Request for Proposal Title: Residential Recycling and Trash Carts, Parts and 

Related Products and Services   

  

Solicitation Number:    22-03     

Addendum Number:    03 

Issue Date of this Addendum:   June 20, 2022  

Solicitation Coordinator: Rich Nolan, Director of Operations, rnolan@cvwma.com 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS ADDENDUM 

 

The Central Virginia Waste Management Authority (CVWMA) is issuing this Addendum to the 

Request for Proposal named above to respond to questions CVWMA has received in writing to 

date.  Potential Offerors should incorporate the following into the Request for Proposal and 

acknowledge their receipt of their proposal.  

CVWMA’s response and revisions to RFP 22-03 are noted below in bold italicized text. 

1. SECTIONS 5.10, 5.11 5.17 and 5.18 related to requirement of barcode.  Can the barcode 
requirement be removed and made optional as barcodes are a duplication of RFID tag 
technology and not needed for initial delivery tracking, ongoing asset management or 
service verification?  

CVWMA RESPONSE:   The CVWMA desires to maximize technology in the initial delivery, 
ongoing asset management and service verification in the future.    As such, CVWMA 
wants to be sure all options are considered in the manufacturing of the Carts to avoid 
retrofitting in the future.  CVWMA amends the RFP to require RFID tags and make the 
barcode optional.  RFID tags are required, but barcodes and any other additional 
technology will be favorably considered.  The following amendments are hereby made 
to the RFP:     

5.10.4 Required Cart Identification is revised as follows: A serial number and optional 
barcode must be placed in at least one (1) location using materials and an application 
method that is highly durable and appropriate to the weather and waste environment.  The 
serial number and barcode must be in a position that will permit unobstructed visibility 
while the containers are nested or stacked (as received upon delivery).   

5.11 RFID or Other Cart Tracking Mechanism, 1st paragraph is revised as follows: The selected 

Offeror shall have the ability to provide barcodes and embedded RFID tag and optional 
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barcodes or other technology, that allow for the scanning, tracking and distribution of carts.  

This is a feature that may be selected by the CVWMA and shall be tied to compatible RFID 

readers integrated into the operating software system that allow for tracking, distribution 

and assignment.   

5.17.1 Software: Asset Management Program and Work Order Solution, 6th bullet is revised as 
follows:   Allow the user to scan bar codes and/or RFID tags and/or barcodes or other 
similar technology to identify and track each Cart associated with a specific customer 
address that is located/maintained in the current and respective recycling and refuse 
collection programs; 

5.18 Assembly and Delivery, 3rd paragraph is revised as follows: Selected Contractor shall at a 

minimum use the barcode on each Cart, associated to the RFID tag and Serial number at 

the point of manufacture, described herein to record and document delivery by address.  

Contractor will be required to scan every container to assign it to an address during delivery.  

Information should include, serial number, RFID number, Cart size/type, address, and GPS 

coordinates (latitude/longitude) of every each container at the point of delivery. Contractor 

must have the ability to deliver and track any addresses that may be excluded from the 

original delivery list.  Barcode and/or other technology will be favorably considered.  

Contractor shall use the barcode to optically scan each Cart.     

OTHER ITEMS OF CLARIFICATION 

2. Section 1.1.2, Paragraph 3: Can CVWMA clarify what equipment they are wanting this 
information for? There is a lot of equipment involved in molding, in-plant assembling, 
shipping, unloading, and final assembly/distribution of carts. 

 
CVWMA Response: The CVWMA is looking for a general overview of the process that 
the Offeror will be using to manufacture, assemble and distribute the carts.  We will not 
require lists of manufacturing and assembly equipment.  

 
3. Section 1.2.2: Can CVWMA clarify what equipment specifications pertaining to cart 

delivery to staging sites that they are interested in? Will CVWMA be providing any 
equipment such as forklifts or docking bays for the unloading of carts at staging sites? 

 
CVWMA Response: A general overview of the Offeror's process of staging and 
delivery.  The CVWMA will not be providing any equipment or docking bags for 
unloading carts at staging sites.  The CVWMA will provide the locations to stage the 
carts for delivery. 

 
4. Section 1.1.2: This section states “Each Offeror must certify that the Offeror has never 

been debarred from participating in any governmental procurement action…” Where 
would the CVWMA like us to verify this? 

 
CVWMA Response: This can be addressed in the proposal.  If an Offeror has never been 
debarred, please make that statement and include it in your proposal.  If an Offeror has 
been debarred, please explain why this occurred in your proposal. 
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5. Item 5.3.b. and Item 5.7 - requirement for HDPE materials and requirement that the lid 

and body be made of the same material.  Will CVWMA consider allowing MDPE materials 

in the body and/or lid of the cart and do both have to be the same material?  

CVWMA Response: In the RFP, the CVWMA requires the Cart body and lid be 

manufactured from High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) and will be keeping that 

requirement.  Reminder to Offerors that Carts must consist of a total 30% of recycled 

content, including at least 5% of residential Post-Consumer Plastic.  Favorable 

consideration will be given to Offerors with the ability to add Climate Positive Material 

into the Cart during the term of a resulting Contract.   

6. Items 5.3h and 5.9 – referring to Cart Axle.  Section 5.3h states that the axle shall be rust 

resistant and fully supported by the cart body.  Section 5.9 includes the each cart shall be 

furnished with a 3/4” minimum diameter high strength, solid steel axle with corrosion 

resistant coating that shal be securely attached to the boy by molded axle retainers. 1) Can 

CVWMA clarify if a solid steel axle is required.   2) Would the Authority consider a minimum 

5/8” diameter axle? 

CVWMA Response:  A minimum ¾”solid steel, corrosion resistant coating is required. 

Any proposed changes to regarding the Cart Axle may be considered by the Authority 

and the Offeror should describe their recommendation in detail in the proposal.  Any 

cost differences should be described on the Cost Proposal Form.   

7. Items 5.8 – require quiet tread wheels.  Would the Authority considering require standard 

plastic wheels with an optional upcharge for quiet tread (rubber tire) wheels?  

Any proposed changes to regarding the Cart Wheels may be considered by the Authority 

and the Offeror should describe their recommendation in detail in the proposal.  Any 

cost differences should be described on the Cost Proposal Form.   

8. Item 5.3.l – allows metal components, but disallows others.  Will the Authority allow 
components that are other than metal.   
 
Any proposed changes to regarding the Cart Wheels may be considered by the Authority 

and the Offeror should describe their recommendation in detail in the proposal.  Any 

cost differences should be described on the Cost Proposal Form.   

9. Section 5.10.5: Can the CVWMA provide a sample of what the in-mold label might look like 
for quoting purposes? 

 
CVWMA Response: The current IML for the Recycling Carts is 14” x 9”.  See sample in 
Attachment 1.0. 
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10. Sections 5.14, 5.14.1 and 5.14.2 – the warranty requires defective carts to be replaced, 
and the Offeror may replace defective carts/parts.  Industry standard roll cart warranties 
provide part for part replacement (lid for a failed lid, wheel for a failed wheel), but not 
complete cart replacements.  Please confirm the intent of this specification is for part for 
part replacements. 

 
CVWMA Response: CVWMA prefers a Cart be repaired with applicable parts before 
replacing the Cart. 

 
11. Section 5.14.1 and 5.14.2 – requires replacements for defects to be replaced within forty-

five (45) calendar days.  While this timeframe is adequate for standard, off-the shelf 
markings, the timeframe may not be sufficient for custom made bodies and lids with 
markings and special features.  We respectfully request that the timeframes be extended 
to forty-five to sixty (45-60) calendar days for replacements. 

 
CVWMA Response: At this time, the CVWMA desires to leave the replacement 
requirement to forty-five (45) days.  If an offeror would like to propose a different time 
frame for defect replacement, the CVWMA evaluation committee will consider it. 

 
12. Sections 5.14.1 & 5.15: Instead of having warranty & return decisions determined solely 

by CVWMA, will the CVWMA consider changing the language in these sections to: “by 
mutual agreement between CVWMA & the selected vendor”? 
 
CVWMA Response: CVWMA will keep this requirement as stated in the RFP.  This could 
be discussed during negotiations.     
 

13. Section 5.14.4 – We request clarification that the Authority will use replacement parts 
from the manufacturer of the cart that needs the replacement (which are available for free 
under warranty) and will not use parts from other manufacturers for its repairs. 

 
CVWMA Response:  As long as the manufacturer is under Contract with the CVWMA, 
the CVWMA intends to use parts from the Offeror(s) awarded the Contract(s).   

 
14. Section 5.17.1 Software: Asset Management Program and Work Order Solution: Bullet 4: 

“provide inventory management capabilities to include progress tracking of container 
shipments”: Can CVWMA please elaborate on this requirement? 
 
CVWMA Response: CVWMA desires to be able to order and track delivery of carts 
subsequent to initial roll-outs through the software system.   
 

15. Section 5.18: How will A&D pricing for the 2024 trash cart project be determined? 
 
CVWMA Response: Offeror shall include in its response a proposal for future costs for 
Assembly and Delivery.   
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16. Will the use of a subcontractor for assembly and distribution of carts be permitted? 

 
CVWMA Response: Yes. See Section 6 of the RFP.  
 

17. Section 6 Insurance: Will the CVWMA consider adjusting and/or accepting the insurance 
requirements at $1,000,000 per occurrence for both automotive liability & comprehensive 
general liability with a commercial umbrella policy limit of $3,000,000? 

 
CVWMA Response: No. We intend to leave the insurance requirements as stated in the 
RFP. 

 
18. Section 6 Licenses, Permits and Certificates: Are there any permits that will be needed for 

the work referenced in this RFP? 
 

CVWMA Response: It is the responsibility of the Offeror to determine what Licenses, 
Permits and Certificates are required to perform this work.   

 
19. Addendum 1, Question 8: Based on the answer for question 8, is the CVWMA still 

interested in pricing for “Fee for preparing and affixing literature to each Cart for initial 
distribution”? 

 
CVWMA Response: Yes. 
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ATTACHMENT 1.0 
 

CVWMA Current In-mold label (Recycling Cans) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


